MINUTES

IOWA LEGISLATIVE COUNCIL

July 10-11, 1973

The organizational meeting of the Iowa Legislative Council was called to order by Speaker Andrew Varley at 1:20 p.m. in the Speaker's Room, State House, Des Moines, Iowa, on July 10, 1973. Council members present were:

Lt. Governor Arthur A. Neu Speaker Andrew Varley Senator James E. Briles Senator Lucas J. DeKoster Senator Willard R. Hansen Senator Eugene M. Hill Senator Clifton C. Lamborn Senator Karl Nolin Senator James F. Schaben Senator Roger J. Shaff Senator Earl M. Willits Representative Dale M. Cochran Representative Donald V. Doyle Representative Charles E. Grassley Representative Edgar H. Holden Representative Joan Lipsky Representative James I. Middleswart Representative Arthur A. Small, Jr. Representative Delwyn D. Stromer

Also present were:

Mr. Serge Garrison, Director, Legislative Service Bureau Mrs. Diane Bolender, Research Analyst, Legislative Service Bureau

Following roll call, Speaker Varley called for nominations for the position of Chairman of the Legislative Council. Senator Briles nominated Senator Lamborn. Representative Stromer moved that nominations cease, and Senator Willits seconded the motion. The motion carried and a unanimous ballot was cast for Senator Lamborn.

Lamborn called for nominations Chairman position of Vice Chairman of the Legislative Council. Briles nominated Representative Holden and Representative Lipsky seconded the nomination. Senator DeKoster moved that nominations Representative Small moved that Representative Cochran be Senator Schaben seconded the nominated and Representative Stromer moved that nominations cease and Senator Shaff seconded the motion. The roll was called with 9 votes Representative Holden, including Chairman Lamborn, Speaker Varley, Senators Briles, DeKoster, Hansen, and Shaff, Representatives Grassley, Lipsky, and Stromer voting

Representative Holden and 6 votes for Representative Cochran, with Senators Hill, Nolin, and Schaben, and Representatives Doyle and Small voting for Representative Cochran. Representative Holden was elected Vice Chairman.

Chairman Lamborn called upon Committee members to review proposed rules for the Legislative Council. Mr. Garrison explained that the proposed rules were revisions of the Rules of the 1971-73 Legislative Council, with changes and deletions because of Senate File 476 which changes the number of members of the Council and the organization of the Council. A copy of the rules as finally adopted is attached and by this reference made a part of these minutes. The Council agreed that rules 1, 2, and 3 should be included without change.

Senator Hill expressed dissatisfaction with proposed rule 4, stating that only those members who are present at the time a vote is taken should be allowed to vote. Senator Hill moved that the 4th proposed rule be deleted, and Senator Schaben seconded the motion. It was stated that the rule had originally been adopted by the Council in order to allow members who are called to the telephone, or who necessarily must leave a meeting for a short time, to register their votes. Representative Holden suggested that the rule should contain a phrase that the member be allowed to register his vote only before the vote is taken. The Council agreed to delete the 4th proposed rule. The 5th and 6th proposed rules were agreed upon.

With regard to the 7th proposed rule, Mr. Garrison explained that it is a revision which is necessary because of the new Council structure, mandating three committees of the Legislative Council.

The proposed rules were adopted as presented, except that proposed rule 4 was deleted.

Chairman Lamborn commented that under Senate File 476, three committees are mandated. These committees are: Legislative Service Committee, the Legislative Fiscal Committee. Hе and the Legislative Administration Committee. explained that it is anticipated that the membership of the Administration Committee will perform functions formerly assigned to the Legislative Procedures and Facilities Committee. disgreed, stating that the duties of the Legislative Procedures and Facilities Committee should be conducted by Legislative Service Committee. Нe suggested that Administration Committee perform duties assigned to Personnel Committee. Lt. Governor Neu noted that under Senate File 476, the Legislative Fiscal Committee has jurisdiction over the personnel of the Legislative Fiscal Bureau. Speaker Varley noted that the Legislative Procedures and Facilities Committee considers changes in procedures of the General Assembly, not just procedures of the Legislative Service Bureau.

Chairman Lamborn announced the following membership of committees of the Legislative Council:

LEGISLATIVE SERVICE COMMITTEE
Senator Briles, Chairman
Senator Lamborn
Senator Schaben
Representative Doyle
Representative Stanley
Representative Stromer

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
Speaker Varley, Chairman
Senator Kyhl
Senator Shaff
Senator Nolin
Representative Cochran
Representative Holden

Chairman Lamborn announced the names of the following members of the Legislative Fiscal Committee, which are named by the President of the Senate and Speaker of the House of Representatives. He noted that the Legislative Fiscal Committee contains four additional members who are not members of the Legislative Council. The members of the Legislative Fiscal Committee are:

Senator Lucas J. DeKoster, Co-Chairman
Representative Charles E. Grassley, Co-Chairman
Senator Eugene M. Hill
Senator Willard R. Hansen
Senator Ralph F. McCartney
Senator Bass Van Gilst
Representative Elmer H. Den Herder
Representative Keith H. Dunton
Representative Joan Lipsky
Representative Arthur A. Small, Jr.

In addition, Chairman Lamborn announced the appointment of a special Studies Committee as follows:

Senator Hansen, Chairman
Senator DeKoster
Senator Nolin
Senator Shaff
Senator Willits
Speaker Varley
Representative Cochran
Representative Holden
Representative Middleswart
Representative Stromer

Senator Schaben commented that the Code requires that insofar as possible at least two members of the Legislative

Council from each house must be reappointed. He stated that he has requested an Attorney General's opinion relating to the matter since only one holdover member of the Council from the Senate was reappointed. Lt. Governor Neu responded that he interpreted the law as discretionary.

Senator Shaff moved that the Committees be approved as appointed. Representative Lipsky seconded the motion, and it carried, with Senator Schaben voting in the negative until determination is made as to whether the members of the Legislative Council were appointed legally.

Chairman Lamborn asked whether Council members wish to continue meeting on the second Wednesday of each month as has been done in the past, with the Tuesday afternoon preceding the Wednesday meeting to be used for meetings of Committees of the Council. Senator Briles moved that the practice be continued that meetings be held on the second Wednesday of each month, with the afternoon of the Tuesday preceding for Committee meetings. Representative Lipsky noted that the Legislative Fiscal Committee may want to meet at additional times, including the morning of the day preceding a Legislative Council meeting. Chairman Lamborn agreed. No objection was raised to Senator Briles' motion.

Representative Lipsky suggested that the August meeting of the Council be held on August 14 and 15. The Council agreed and also agreed to meet on July 25 to name the membership of the various interim study committees.

The Legislative Council recessed at 2:15 p.m. to provide a time for committees of the Legislative Council to meet.

Chairman Lamborn called the meeting to order at 9:15 a.m. on July 15, 1973 with the same Council members present who had been present on the previous day, except that Senator Schaben was not present. Also present were:

Mr. Frank Bunker, Consulting Architect

Mr. Frank Pulley, Engineering Consultant

Representative Norman Roorda, member of the Capitol Planning Commission

Senator William Plymat, member of the Capitol Planning Commission

Mr. Stanley McCausland, Director of General Services, member of the Capitol Planning Commission

Mrs. Polly Moore, member of the Capitol Planning Commission Representative Glenn Brockett, member of the Capitol Planning Commission

Mr. William Wagner, member of the Capitol Planning Commis-

Mr. James Hubbell, member of the Capitol Planning Commission

Mr. Serge Garrison, Director, Legislative Service Bureau

Mrs. Diane Bolender, Research Analyst, Legislative Service Bureau

Chairman Lamborn called upon Mr. Frank Bunker for a report on plans for double-decking a portion of the Legislative Service Bureau area. Mr. Bunker stated that at the request of Mr. Garrison, he had prepared budget estimates for a floor expansion project similar to the project undertaken during the preceding year for the Legislative Fiscal Director. He determined that such a project was possible and feasible and that the area involved is not an historic area of the capitol building.

Mr. Bunker stated that he has presented Mr. Garrison with an architectural contract providing for a charge of \$18 per hour consulting fees. With regard to a time estimate for completion of construction, Mr. Bunker suggested that a first review and acceptance of plans take place at the August Legislative Council meeting, a review of the bids received take place in September, and that the months of September, October, November, and December be used for construction purposes.

Senator Hill asked for an estimate of the number of square feet of floor space which will be gained. Mr. Bunker responded that approximately 1400 square feet can be gained in the two areas, with approximately 700 square feet in each separate area. With regard to ventilation and air conditioning of the upstairs portion, Mr. Bunker named two alternatives: adding additional equipment for the upstairs area or utilizing the cold water system which will be installed for air conditioning the legislative chambers.

In response to a question regarding the use of the additional floor space, Mr. Garrison responded that he anticipates employing seven new employees commencing July 1, 1974, which would include two attorneys, three researchers, and two secretaries. With the additional floor space, Mr. Garrison stated that it will be possible to regain the use of the Legislative Service Bureau library by moving the proofreaders into a portion of the new area. The additional floor space will also provide more adequate storage areas.

Senator Willits asked about whether the Capitol Planning Commission has been consulted with regard to the floor expansion. Mr. Bunker responded that the plans and specifications have not yet been prepared, but upon preparation will be presented to the Capitol Planning Commission for its review. Mr. Bunker indicated that the funds appropriated will be sufficient to complete the project.

Representative Brockett, Chairman of the Capitol Planning Commission, questioned the high cost of \$65 per square foot of added floor space. Mr. Bunker responded that not only will foor space be added, but the area below the floor expansion space will be remodeled, and a replanning of plumbing and heating will also be necessary. Mrs. Polly Moore asked when the Capitol Planning Commission will be consulted. It was agreed that the

Capitol Planning Commission should be presented with information concerning the work anticipated and the areas to be remodeled prior to development of the plans. Subsequently the members of the Capitol Planning Commission who were present were given a tour of the Legislative Service Bureau facilities and were directed to report to the Legislative Council following the luncheon recess.

Speaker Varley moved that the Legislative Council approve the employment of Mr. Bunker as a consultant to develop plans and that the plans which are developed be submitted to the Capitol Planning Commission prior to the August meeting. Senator Briles seconded the motion. Discussion was carried on in regard to the motion and the authority of the Legislative Council and the Capitol Planning Commission. Mr. Garrison noted that section 2.51 of the Code outlines the authority of the two agencies. It was agreed to proceed in the manner specified in the motion.

Chairman Lamborn called upon Representative Brockett to the progress of the Capitol Planning Commission report in developing plans for the construction of a new state office building and an agricultural building. Representative Brockett stated that the Capitol Planning Commission has held one meeting and has on a six to two vote approved the concept that the office building should not be an addition to the present Lucas State Office Building. Representative Brockett indicated McCausland disagrees with the decision of the Capitol Planning Commission. Representative Brockett explained that addition to planning the construction of two new buildings, the Capitol Planning Commission has a concern about parking problems and decisions regarding the establishment of a central cafeteria for the entire capitol complex. He stated that decisions need to although no money be made in these two areas appropriated for the construction of either. Senator Lamborn asked whether there is space available for additional parking. Representative Brockett answered in the affirmative.

Senator Hill asked about the federal government's requirements concerning open-space. Representative Brockett responded that if a centralized underground cafeteria is built in the mall area, it would be connected with the various buildings by means of underground tunnels and the open-space concept would be maintained.

Lt. Governor New commented that the legislation which has been enacted authorizes construction of only one new office building and there is no authority for planning the construction of a centralized food service. He added that such a centralized food service may be in the long-term plans of the Capitol Planning Commission. Chairman Lamborn suggested that the Capitol Planning Commission present a plan to the General Assembly during its next session regarding solutions to the parking and cafeteria problems.

Mr. Wagner commented that he is the only registered architect on the Capitol Planning Commission, and he agrees with McCausland that an addition to the present Lucas the proper procedure to be followed. Office Building is McCausland responded by discussing the importance of decisions regarding construction of a centralized cafeteria and added that if an addition to the Lucas Building is constructed, the Building and below ground areas could be the Lucas οf utilized а centralized cafeteria. Mr. McCausland as difficulty in moving commented about the data processing equipment from building to building, and commented that Capitol Planning Commission plans also call for the construction of a Hall of Justice. Mr. McCausland expressed the belief data processing facilities should ultimately be located in the basement of the Hall of Justice for security and availability reasons. Lt. Governor Neu expressed the belief that office building should be built which is both architecturally and aesthetically pleasing. He noted that House File 770 gives final authority to the Capitol Planning Commission for approval of the construction of the new state office building.

Senator Plymat briefly described an experience he had in building an addition to an office building and the difficulty in equalizing heating and air conditioning in the two separate portions of the building.

Representative Cochran asked about the possibilities of a Hall of Justice presently and utilizing any federal funds which would be available. He added that an extra floor could be added to the Hall of Justice which would not be built with federal funds and would contain other state agencies. Speaker Varley suggested that the Capitol Planning Commission might investigate this. Representative Roorda noted that if a Justice is constructed, decisions must be made by the Capitol Planning Commission regarding moving the Supreme Court Law Library from the Capitol Building. Senator Lamborn asked the Capitol Planning Commission to make further construction of the new state office buildings and report these decisions to the Legislative Council. He noted that moving the State Law Library is not a popular proposal.

Chairman Lamborn called upon Mr. Pulley to report progress and plans for air conditioning the Senate and House chambers. Mr. Pulley stated that the Legislative Council him to prepare plans and specifications conditioning the legislative chambers, and he has completed plans. He stated that August 14 has been set as the date for bids and requested that some person bе authority to open the bids. With regard to the technical aspects, Mr. Pulley stated that machinery will be placed above the chambers and no evidence of the air conditioning machinery will be visible from the themselves. He stated that if bids are received by August 14, the air conditioning should be completed by the convening of the General Assembly in January.

Chairman Lamborn asked about feasibility conditioning Room 22 behind the Senate Chamber, since it is a larger room and would be more convenient for Legislative Council Mr. Pulley agreed to report on July 25 about the cost of air conditioning Room 22. In response to a question about the costs of air conditioning the chambers, Mr. Pulley responded that the Legislative Council had determined that \$195,000 could be spent for air conditioning the legislative chambers from the open-end appropriation for the General Assembly. Mr. Pully originally estimated that the cost would be approximately prices \$163,000, but within the past several months increased approximately 15% and the bids might be in the neighborhood of \$195,000.

Senator Willits asked about the feasibility of air conditioning the Law Library and the costs. Mr. Pulley responded could not estimate accurately the cost "guesstimate" conditioning the Law Library, but а approximate \$30,000. Mr. Pulley agreed to attempt to complete plans and specifications for air conditioning the Law Library prior to the bid-letting on August 14, and the bidders will bid on both air conditioning projects. The Legislative Council will then be able to decide whether it wishes to air condition the Law Library.

Mr. Pulley explained that the specifications require the contractor to carry liability insurance. Senator DeKoster suggested that Mr. Pulley add a specification that the contractor carry a one million dollar "umbrella" liability policy. The Legislative Council agreed, and Mr. Pulley agreed to add the additional liability policy to the specifications. Authority was given by the Legislative Council to Mr. Garrison to open sealed bids.

Chairman Lamborn thanked Mr. Pulley for presentation and called upon Mr. Ralph Brown, Secretary of Senate, to discuss any changes or remodeling in the facilities of the Senate that appear necessary. Mr. Brown commented that the Secretary of the Senate was instructed last fall by Legislative Council to determine the cost of obtaining a voting machine for the Senate. briefly Mr. Brown described information he received from two major companies, one located in South Dakota and one located in Illinois, and stated that appears that it will cost between \$60,000 and \$70,000 to install a voting machine in the Senate and will take approximately five for the installation. With this information, it appears months that it would not be feasible to consider the installation of a voting machine prior to the 1974 legislative session, but such a machine could be availabe for the 1975 legislative session. Brown continued that if a new voting machine were installed, the sound system could be updated as well the call system for pages. Brown added that a result of time trials taken in the Senate

and House indicates that the time taken to call the roll in the Senate is almost equal to the time taken to utilize the present House of Representatives voting machine, although the time taken to record votes on a new voting machine would be less than the time taken to record votes on the House of Representatives voting machine. The Legislative Council agreed that the information should be discussed by the Administration Committee which will report back to the Legislative Council.

Chairman Lamborn called upon Mr. William Harbor, Chief Clerk of the House of Representatives, for a report on needed changes in House facilities. Mr. Harbor distributed copies of a written report which he commented upon. A copy of the report is attached and by this reference made a part of these minutes.

Representative Cochran commented that many legislators who attend interim committee meetings desire to use a WATS and the only telephones available are those located in the offices of the Chief Clerk of the House and Secretary of Chairman Lamborn suggested that a telephone be placed in each private legislative lounge for the use of the legislators. The Legislative Council agreed with Chairman Lamborn's suggestion directed Mr. Harbor and Mr. Brown to proceed installation of the telephones. It was suggested that existing capitol WATS lines be used and also phone jacks so that phones could be removed during the session if that is desired.

Chairman Lamborn called for the report of the Studies Committee. A copy of the report is attached and by this reference made a part of these minutes.

Representative Lipsky suggested that the study of the juvenile justice system, HCR 35, which was assigned to the Mental Health Study should be assigned to the Penal and Correctional Systems Study Committee. The Legislative Council agreed.

Representative Doyle noted that the Studies Committee has not acted upon HCR 21 which requested the establishment of study to compare the provisions of the Iowa Vehicle Code with the Uniform Vehicle Code. He noted that HCR 21 was adopted by the House and he suggested that the study be referred to the Chairmen of the House Committee on Judiciary and Law Enforcement Senate Committee on Judiciary. Representative Doyle moved that 21 be referred the Chairmen to of the Committees Judiciary. It was noted that such a study could be conducted by a small study committee of approximately four to six members. The motion carried and the report was adopted as amended.

Chairman Lamborn commented that some major bills which were introduced during the 1973 legislative session are still pending and if the chairmen of standing committees to which the bills are assigned were requested to appoint subcommittees to study the bills during the interim, the major bills could be reported out of committee during the first week of the legisla-

tive session and be ready for debate. He stated that he will meet with leaders from the two houses and will present a list of bills for Council approval.

Chairman Lamborn asked about whether a study should be initiated on the feasibility of establishing pari-mutuel betting. He explained that if such a bill comes up for debate, it would be advantageous to have had a study committee prior to consideration of a pari-mutuel betting bill. Some Council members stated that establishment of a study committee would tend to encourage consideration of a pari-mutuel betting bill. Senator DeKoster suggested that the Legislative Service Bureau prepare an in-depth research memorandum concerning the manner in which pari-mutuel betting is accomplished in other states before any determination is made by the Legislative Council.

Senator Schaben, who was present at the commented that he had missed a portion of the morning session in order to attend a meeting of the Governor's Beef Force, of which he is a member, which has been studying problems of the beef industry in Iowa. He stated that current law in Iowa makes it impossible to construct new cattle feeding facilities within requirements οf the Department Environmental Quality. He suggested that a member of the Force be invited to visit with the Legislative Council. Speaker Varley commented that the problem of constructing cattle feeding facilities can be studied together with the study of development of a workable land use policy in Iowa. Chairman Lamborn agreed to allow approximately fifteen minutes at the July Council meeting for representatives of the Beef Task Force. Speaker Varley suggested that the Director of the Department Environmental Quality and a representative from the Environmental Protection Agency in Kansas City be invited to the Council meeting. The Council agreed.

Chairman Lamborn commented that the Council has not decided the number of members for each interim study committee which it has established. Speaker Varley moved that the study committees for the Iowa Crime Commission and the Iowa Rights Commission contain six legislative members. He noted that Higher Education Study Committee presently contains eight legislative members. He suggested that the study of mental health contain six legislative and six nonlegislative members. He suggested that the committees to study penal and correctional systems, the regulation of consumer credit, local funding and budgeting by political subdivisions, highway fatalities, and the energy crisis each contain ten legislative members. He also recommended that the study of pension and retirement programs contain six legislative members.

Senator Schaben moved that the six member committees contain three members from each political party. Senator Hill seconded the motion, and it lost on a voice vote.

Senator Kill moved that each interim study committee contain ten legislative members. Representative Cochran seconded the motion. Representative Holden moved that each six member committee be expanded to include seven legislative members with four representatives and three senators on each committee and the total makeup of the committee to include four members of the majority party and three members of the minority party. Representative Holden's substitute motion carried with Senators Hill and Shaff and Representative Grassley voting in the negative.

The Legislative Council recessed for lunch at 12:15 p.m. The Legislative Service Committee met at 1:15 p.m. and the Legislative Council reconvened at 1:45 p.m.

Chairman Lamborn called upon Representative Brockett to comment upon the reaction of the Capitol Planning Commission to a tour of the facilities of the Legislative Service Bureau. Representative Brockett explained that the members had toured the facilities and had visited with Mr. Bunker and had come to the conclusion that the project appears not to destroy the historic significance of the capitol building. He stated that the Capitol Planning Commission tentatively approves the project and agrees that plans and specifications should be developed.

Chairman Lamborn called upon Mr. McCausland announced that major repairs are needed on the capitol building. He stated that in 1963, \$193,000 was spent on major repairs and in 1969, \$125,000 was spent for remedial repair work on capitol building. He stated that the stone work and concrete must be repaired and sealed at a cost of some \$100,000 \$200,000 and there are not sufficient funds in the contingency fund to pay for the repairs. He stated that he was appropriated funds in a capitol appropriation for specific projects, but would like to postpone the completion of the specific projects and use the funds for the repairs to the capitol building. McCausland explained that he would like to employ a professional consultant to make determinations of what is needed and then employ a local structural engineer to complete the repairs.

Chairman Lamborn commented that during the morning session the Land Use Policies Study Committee was authorized a membership of ten, but the last interim had fourteen legislative members. Representative Cochran advised that three members of the Democratic party were members of the Land Use Policies Study Committee and a ten member committee would not provide for three Democratic House members. Senator Shaff moved that the Land Use Policies Study Committee be expanded to include fourteen legislative members. Representative Small seconded the motion, and it carried.

Chairman Lamborn called upon Mr. Tom Mayer, Acting Citizens' Aide for discussion of the budget of the Office of Citizens' Aide. Mr. Mayer commented that the Office of Citizens'

Aide was appropriated \$72,250 for the fiscal year 1973-74. indicated that a report of his budget request was mailed to Council members. A copy of the report is attached and by this reference made a part of these minutes. Mr. Mayer explained that Senate File 578 which contains the appropriation to the Citizens' Aide office contains an appropriation for \$2,640 to provide funds for matching federal funds to provide a Citizens' Aide He added that Senate File 73 which would have prisoners. authorized the employment of a Citizens' Aide for prisoners not passed, and the State Comptroller's office believes that the additional \$2,640 should not be granted to the Citizens' Aide He stated that he has requested a formal Opinion from the Attorney General on the matter.

Mr. Mayer stated that the federal funds are provided for six-month periods, and if the Legislative Council agrees that such a program should be established, \$1,320 for the first six months could be obtained from the regular budget of the Citizens' Aide, and the General Assembly could act during the next session to fund the program for the other three six-month periods. Representative Holden expressed opposition to establishing a separate Citizens' Aide for the exclusive purpose of hearing prisoner complaints. Mr. Mayer commented that he has been listening to prisoner complaints, but such a process is time consuming.

The Council discussed whether the Crime Commission approve the distribution of federal funds to the Citizens' Aide office for a Citizens' Aide for the prisoners employee were also hearing complaints from other citizens of Representative Small moved that the Citizens' Aide office to the Crime Commission for funds for six months and continue to function with employees of the Citizens' Aide office hearing complaints of prisoners, but that a specific person not be assigned to hear only prison complaints. Senator DeKoster seconded the motion. Mr. Mayer commented that only the Citizens' Aide can make official complaints and criticisms and not a Deputy Citizens' Aide. It was suggested that one person handle all prison complaints, but that this person be rotated semiannual basis.

Mayer explained that the additional \$1,300 needed to finance the program for six months would come appropriation for expert witnesses. Senator Nolin expressed the belief that the Citizens' Aide should not be directed by Legislative Council concerning the internal operation of his office. Representative Cochran moved that an assistant be handle problems of prisoners under the direction of the Citizens' Aide for a six-month period. Senator Schaben seconded Representative Lipsky commented that the six-month motion. proposal is an opportunity for experimentation and the Citizens' Aide should be prepared to report to the Legislative Council and the General Assembly in December on the results The roll was called, and the motion carried with employment.

thirteen affirmative votes by Chairman Lamborn, Senators Briles, DeKoster, Hansen, Nolin, Schaben, Shaff, Willits, and Representatives Cochran, Doyle, Lipsky, Middleswart, and Small and five negative votes by Speaker Varley, Senator Hill, and Representatives Grassley, Holden and Stromer. Senator Schaben moved that the Citizens' Aide be given the authority to line item \$1,300 to match with federal matching funds for the employment of the Citizens' Aide for prisoners. Representative Small seconded the motion, and it carried on a voice vote.

Senator Schaben moved that the budget of the Citizens' Aide office be adopted as submitted to the Legislative Council. Senator DeKoster seconded the motion. Senator Schaben expressed the belief that the salary of the new employee should not be higher than the salary of the First Deputy. Mr. Mayer commented that it is anticipated that the new employee would be an attorney, and the First Deputy is not an attorney. The motion carried on a voice vote with Representatives Grassley and Holden and Senator Hill voting in the negative.

Chairman Lamborn called for the report of the Legislative Service Committee on the employment of a Citizens' Aide. A copy of the report is attached and by this reference made a part of these minutes. Senator Willits moved that the report be accepted by the Legislative Council, and Senator DeKoster seconded the motion. The motion carried. The Legislative Service Committee agreed to present a minimum of at least two names to the Legislative Council for its consideration.

Mr. Mayer asked that the Legislative Council designate him as Interim Citizens' Aide so that he will have the authority to make criticisms and complaints. The title would be effective only until the Legislative Council selects a new Citizens' Aide. Senator Shaff moved that Mr. Mayer be given the title Interim Citizens' Aide. Representative Cochran seconded the motion, and it carried.

Mr. Mayer asked for approval of employment of a law student who had formally worked for the Citizens' Aide office on a part-time basis and presently desires summer employment. Senator DeKoster moved that Mr. Mayer be given the authority to employ Mr. James F. Hoffert until the appointment of a new Citizens' Aide or August 13, 1973, whichever is sooner. Senator Schaben seconded the motion, and it carried.

Mr. Mayer asked for approval to appoint Mrs. Ruth Mosher to perform the tasks of a Deputy Citizens' Aide after Mr. Hoffert leaves and before a new Citizens' Aide is appointed. Mrs. Mosher intends to return to the Senate as a secretary in January. Senator Schaben moved that Mrs. Mosher be employed as requested by Mr. Mayer. Senator Shaff seconded the motion, and it carried.

Mr. Mayer requested that he be authorized to employ a secretary to work while the permanent secretary is on vacation. Senator Schaben moved that Mr. Mayer be allowed to appoint a temporary secretary as needed. Senator Nolin seconded the motion, and it carried.

Chairman Lamborn called upon Representative Grassley, Co-Chairman of the Legislative Fiscal Committee, for a report on its budget. Representative Grassley noted that copies of the suggested budget had been mailed to Legislative Council members. A copy of the budget is attached and by this reference made a part of these minutes. The Legislative Fiscal Committee agrees to the budget as submitted by the Legislative Fiscal Director, with the exception that a statistical analyst not be hired to commence employment July 1, 1974. He explained that the budget anticipates the hiring of an additional professional employee as a Budget Analyst IV to work with the Education Subcommittee of the Committees on Appropriations. Representative Grassley moved the adoption of the budget of the Legislative Fiscal Bureau. Senator DeKoster seconded the motion, and it carried.

Chairman Lamborn called for a report of the Legislative Service Committee on the budget of the Legislative Service Bureau. A copy of the report of the Legislative Service Committee is attached and by this reference made a part of these minutes. Senator Briles moved the adoption of the report as submitted. Senator Hansen seconded the motion, and it carried.

Chairman Lamborn noted that Mr. Wayne Faupel, Code Editor, has asked for permission to use Legislative Dining Rooms 2, 3, and 4 for proofreading of the Code of Iowa which is on magnetic tape. Senator Schaben moved that Mr. Faupel be allowed to use the Legislative Dining Rooms 2, 3, and 4 as requested. Senator DeKoster seconded the motion, and it carried.

Chairman Lamborn noted that the National Legislative Conference will be held in Chicago from August 7-10 and that the past policy has been that Legislative Council members are authorized to attend.

The Legislative Council adjourned at 3:15 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

SERGE H. GARRISON Director

DIANE BOLENDER Research Analyst